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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ARVIND TRUE BLUE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Arvind True Blue Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for
the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, the loss and total comprehensive loss, changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter Paragraph

We draw your attention to note 34 of the financials which explains the uncertainties and management’s
assessment of the financial impact on the financial statement of the Company due to the lockdown and
other restrictions imposed by the Government of India and other conditions related to the COVID-19
pandemic situation, for which a definitive assessment in the subsequent period is highly dependent
upon circumstances as they evolve.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
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evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.
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d)

g)

h)

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

The provision of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2021.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements;

il. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts.

iii. There have been no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 11041£W

otelly S -

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner

Membership No.100892
UDIN:21100892AAAAKL6805

Ahmedabad
May 18, 2021
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ANNEXURE “"A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of Arvind True Blue Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ARVIND TRUE
BLUE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting
of the Company.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company'’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 110417W,

ol e B

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner
Membership No.100892

Ahmedabad
May 18, 2021
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of Arvind True Blue Limited of even date)

Vi.

vii.

In respect of the Company’s fixed assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of fixed assets in a
phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain fixed assets
were physically verified by the management during the year. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

(c) The Company has no immovable properties. Consequently, requirements of Clause (i)
(c) of Paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable.

As explained to us, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable
intervals by the management and the discrepancies noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records were not material having regard to the size of the
Company, and the same have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

According the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
secured / unsecured loans to Companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Consequently, requirements
of clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not advanced any loan or given any guarantee or provided any security or made any
investment covered under section 185 or section 186 of the Act. Consequently, requirements
of clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder. No order has been passed
by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or

any Court or any other Tribunal.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not prescribed
maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Act in respect of the Company’s

product. Consequently, requirement of clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed

statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Wealth
Tax, Custom Duty, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues
applicable to it.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable

in respect of outstanding statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2021 for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.
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(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, no disputed amounts are
payable as at March 31, 2021.

viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institutions and banks.

iX. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause 3 (ix) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

X To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has
been noticed or reported during the year.

Xi. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not paid/provided managerial remuneration. Consequently, requirements of clause (xi)
of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

Xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Consequently, requirements of clause (xii) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

xiii. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial
statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Xiv. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares during the year under review. Consequently, requirements of clause (xiv) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

XV. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him.

XVi. According to the nature of the business, the Company is not required to be registered under
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 110417V/VA

oy l: fhrr

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner
Membership No.100892

Ahmedabad
May 18, 2021



Arvind True Blue Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

Amount in Rs.

As at As at
Particulars Notes March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
ASSETS
1. Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 5 2,84,46,461 3,32,15,323
(b) Capital Work in Progress 29 - -
(c) Right-of-use asset 47,77,718 11,71,00,680
{d) Intangible assets 6 28,59,799 38,86,255
(e) Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 7 (c) 50,025 1,92,87,351
(f) Other non-current assets 8 - 11,95,486
Total non-current assets 3,61,34,003 17,46,85,095
1I.Current assets
(a) Inventories 9 11,43,29,217 11,11,31,597
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 7 (a) 17,13,75,485 12,41,59,125
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 7 (b) 55,95,828 11,51,485
(c) Current tax assets (net) - -
(d) Other current assets 8 6,87,12,193 19,37,62,728
Total current assets 36,00‘1&723 43‘0&04‘935
Total Assets aggghttglzzg gggﬁ.gglggg
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 10 1,14,290 1,14,290
Preference share capital 10 81,00,00,000 16,00,00,000
Other equity 11 (78.04.1 7,562) ;§§,62,§3,4;z)
Total equity 2,96,96,728 !49,68,70,122!
LIABILITIES
1. Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Lease Liabilities 29 37,97,825 12,26,25,583
(b) Long-term provisions 13 1,40,222 18,06,461
Total non-current liabilities 39,38,047 12,44,32,044
II.Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 12 (a) 23,37,34,076 76,39,94,076
(ii) Lease Liabilities 29 21,51,693 1,94,04,455
(iit) Trade payables 12 (b)
a) Tota! outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 6,48,659 94,16,918
enterprises : ! '
b) Tota! outstanding dues of gredltors other than micro 6,33,52,380 12.60,05,679
enterprises and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 12 (c) 5,64,79,325 5,11,98,306
(b) Other current liabilities 14 59,09,012 65,84,891
(c) Short-term provisions i3 2,36,806 7.23,783
Total current liabilities 36,25,11,951 97,73,28,108
Total Equity and Liabilities 39,61,46,726 60,48,90,030

See accompanying notes forming part of the Financial Statements

(-

As per our report of even date
For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 110417W

ol S
CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.

Partner
Membership No. 100892

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Arvind True :S Limited

QuE="

Susheel Kaul
Director
(DIN:08208011)

Preres Ve

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May 18, 2021

Pranav Dave
Director
(DIN:09045130)
Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May 18, 2021



Arvind True Biue Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

Amount in Rs.
Year ended Year ended

Particulars Notes March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
I. Income
Revenue from operations

Sale of Products 15 11,70,79,264 13,47,33,706
Revenue from operations 11,70,79,264 13,47,33,706
Other income 16 2,61,31,118 21,78,262
Total income (I) 14,32,10,382 13,69,11,968
II. Expenses
Purchases of stock-in-trade 37 11,81,56,764 20,64,84,934
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade i8 (31,97,620) (5,31,19,777)
Employee benefits expense 19 1,19,11,498 3,48,89,339
Finance costs 20 6,32,80,505 6,86,71,672
Depreciation and amortisation expense 21 2,03,73,431 3,12,92,608
Other expenses 22 5,63,70,912 9,73,56,797
Total expenses (II) 26,68,95,490 38,55,75,573
II1. Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (I-II) (12,36,85,108) (24,86,63,605)
IV. Exceptional Items 22-A 3,45,356 =
V. Profit/(Loss) before tax (III-IV) (12,40,30,464) (24,86,63,605)

VI. Tax expense
VII Profit/(Loss) for the year (V-VI)
VIIL. Other comprehensive income

Items that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans 11
Income tax effect

Net other comprehensive income/(loss) not to be reclassified to

profit or loss in subsequent periods

Total other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax
. Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax
(VII+VIII)

X. Earning per equity share
Basic - Rs. 28
Diluted - Rs. 28

={12.40,30,464) _ (24,86,63.605)

5,97,314 (2,21,519)
5,97,314 (2,21,519)
5,97,314 (2,21,519)

(12,34,33,150)  (24,88,85,124)
(10,852.26) (21,757.25)
(10,852.26) (21,757.25)

See accompanying notes forming part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date
For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the board of directors of

Arvind True Blue Limited
Firm Registration No. 110417W A
r a 3
CA. Chokshi Shreyas B. Susheel Kaul
Partner Director

Membership No. 100892

(DIN:08208011)

Pherd Dove

Pranav Dave

Director
Place : Ahmedabad

Date : May 18, 2021
Date :

(DIN:09045130)
Place : Ahmedabad
May 18, 2021



Arvind True Blue Umited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2021

Year ended Year ended
e March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Restated Profit/ (Loss) before tax (12,40,30,464)  (24,86,63,605)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows: &
Depreciation /Amortization 2,03,73,431 3,12,92,608
Ir ing Cost 6,32,80,505 6,86,71,672
Inventory Write down 75,682,136 7,22,65,221
Gain on Reassessment of Leases (2,11,48,006) =
s\mdly (:mdt Balanm Appmpnatad
g Capital Chang (5,45,97,458) (7,83,74,833)
Woqu &p«zl Changes:
Changes in Inventories (1,07,79,756) (12.53,85,004)
Changes in trade payables (7,07,66,498) (1,61,33,625)
Changes in other liabilities (6,75,879) 6,53,057
Changes in other financal liabilities 4,45,624 10,31,736
Changes n pruvmons (15,55,902 5,03,775
ges in trade bl (4,72,16,360) 1,25,25,365
Changes in other assets 12,50,50,535 (9,40,34,989)
Changes in other financial assets —19337326 5552932
Net Changes in Working Capital —_137,39,090  (21,52,86,753]
Cash Generated from Operations —(408.58368) _ (29.36.61.586)
Direct Taxes paid (Net of Income Tax refund - = .
Net Cash m 4,08,58,368) _ (29.36,61,586)
B Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment /Intangible assets (18,89,273) (1,29,48,114)
6,97,529
u:95,486 {11,95,486)
3742 11.41.43.600)
65,00,00,000 -
i (53,02,60,000) 37,01,76,000
Principal Repayment of Lease Liability (2,25,81 867) (3,09,06,625)
Interest and Other Bom:m'g Cost Paid (‘5, 2
ncrease in cash & cash valents
eqQuIV: e nng year 11, sﬂ!: ,9,41,170;
Cash&Cuhﬁ'mamemdofﬂng 55,95,828 11,51.485
gures in L oul .
Amount in Rs.
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Cash and cash equiv comprise of:
Cash on Hand - -
Balances with Banks 55‘955828 11,51.485
Cash and cash eq as per Sheet (Note 7b) % = 11,51,485
Less: Book Overdraft - =
Cash and cash equivaients 55,95 828 1151485
Disclosure under Para 44A as set out in Ind As 7 on cash flow under Companies( Indian A ting Standards) Rules, 2015 ( as amended)
Amount in Rs.
Non Cash ¢ es
Particulars of liabilities arising from Note As at Net cash fi Effect of As at
financing activity No. April 1, 2020 in Foreign Other Changes*  March 31, 2021
_Currency Rates
Shott !erm 12(a) 76,39,94,076 (53,02,60,000) — . 23,37,34,076
%ﬁm 12(c) 4,60,93,930 ,164) - 5,66,94,559 5,09,29,325
L S —7 D% 18
Amount in Rs.
Particulars of liabilities arising from Note As at Net cash flows Effect of change As at
financing activity No. April 1, 2019 in Foreign Other Changes*  March 31, 2020
Currency Rates
Borrowings:
Short term borrowings 12(a) 39,38,18,076 37,01,76,000 - 76,39,94,076

Interest accrued on 12(c 2,37,84,114 2 - 5,16,81, 150 4,60,93,930

e L CO— % L1

1) The cash flow has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) statement of cash
As per our report of even date For and on behaif of the board of directors of
For Sorab S. Engineer & Co. Arvlnd‘fru.lhc
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.J110417W /

=l

Al dlqr o
CA. Clbhlll Shreyas B. 61"'0&%011)

Mernbershspuo 100892 Az r—end ‘)‘ﬁ.‘:‘
Pranav Dave =3
Director
(DIN:09045130)

Place :

Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May 18, 2021 sy

Date : May 18, 2021



Arvind True Blue Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity

A. Share capital
Amount in Rs.

Balance Equity Preference
Note 11 Note 11 |
As at April 1, 2019 1,14,290 16,00,00,000
Issue of Share capital - i
As at March 31, 2020 1,14,290 16,00,00,000
Issue of Share capital - 65,00,00,000
1,14,290 81,00,00,000

As at March 31, 2021

B. Other equity Amount in Rs
m .

Attributable to the equity holders

Particulars

Retained Earnings Total equity
Note 12
Balance as at April 1, 2019 (39,35,93,493) (39,35,93,493)
Transition Effect of Ind AS 116 (1,45,05,795) (1,45,05,795)
Profit/(Loss) for the year (24,86,63,605) (24,86,63,605)
Other comprehensive income for the year (2,21,519) (2,21,519)
Balance as at March 31, 2020 (65,69,84,412) (65,69,84,412]
Balance as at April 1, 2020 (65,69,84,412) (65,69,84,412)
Restated Profit/(Loss) for the year (12,40,30,464) (12,40,30,464)

Other comprehensive income for the year 5,97,314 5,97,31
Balance as at March 31, 2021 8,04 : :

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the board of directors of
For Sorab S. Engineer & Co. Arvind True Blue Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 110417\1 \_,)

afi frr 4 ol

Sushe€el Kaul

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B. Director
Partner (DIN:08208011)

Membership No. 100892
Vot Dove
Pranav Dave

Director
Place : Ahmedabad (DIN:09045130)
Date : May 18, 2021 Place : Ahmedabad

Date : May 18, 2021
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 5 : Property, plant and equipment

Amount in Rs.

Computers,
Furniture & Plant & Leasehold Office
PRIcuines fixture Machinery Vehicles improvements equipment Servers and Tofal
Network*
Gross Carrying Value
As at April 1, 2019 1,99,64,561 - 10,67,889 1,16,29,056 7,08,297 53,37,889 3,87,07,692
Additions 84,02,408 13,31,637 - 22,00,679 2,80,582 7,32,808 1,29,48,114
Deductions* - - 51,34,145 51,34,145
As at March 31, 2020 2,83,66,969 13,31,637 10,67,889 1,38,29,735 9,88 4, 1,661
Additions 18,62,773 - - - - 26,500 18,89,273
Deductions - - 10,67,889 - - - 10,67,889
As at March 31, 2021 3,02,29,742 13,31,637 - 1,38,29,735 __ 9,88,879 9,63,052 ewﬂuﬂdﬂwl
Depreciation and Impairment
As at April 1, 2019 18,33,984 - 695 50,82,016 2,83,830 4,00,961 76,01,486
Depreciation for the year 32,37,418 1,38,736 2,53,624 20,52,298 2,25,623 18,587 59,26,286
Deductions - - - 2,21,434 2,21,434
As at March 31, 2020 50,71,402 1,38,736 2,54,319 71,34,314 5,09,453 1,98,114 1,33,06,338
Depreciation for the year 31,75,432 1,57,920 1,16,041 22,07,963 1,72,716 1,30,534 59,60,606
Deductions o - 3,70,360 - - - 3,70,360
As at March 31, 2021 82,46,834 2,96,656 - 93,42,277 6,82,169 3,28,648 1,88,96,584
Net Carrying Value
As at March 31, 2021 2,19,82,908 10,34,981 - 44,87,458 3,06,710 6,34,404 2,84,46,461
As at March 31, 2020 2,32,95,567 11,92,901 8,13,570 66,95,421 4,79,426 7,38,438 3,32,15,323

*Deduction during the year represents amount transferred to intangible assets (computer software)

Note:

1) Refer Note 24 for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.



Arvind True Blue Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 6 : Intangible assets

Amount in Rs.

Computer Total

Particulars smsare Intangible
Assets

Gross Carrying Value
As at April 1, 2019 - -
Additions* 51,34,145 51,34,145
Deductions T = i
As at March 31, 2020 51,34,145 51,34,145
Additions =
Deductions =1 R =il e
As at March 31, 2021 51,334,145 51,34,145
Amortisation and Impairment
As at April 1, 2019 - -
Transfer from Computers, Servers & Network 2,21,434 2,21,434
Amortisation for the Year 10,26,456 10,26,456
Deductions - -
As at March 31, 2020 12,47,890 12,47,890
Amortisation for the year 10,26,456 10,26,456
Deductions - -
As at March 31, 2021 22,74,346 22,74,346
Net Carrying Value
As at March 31, 2021 28,59,799 28,59,799
As at March 31, 2020 38,86,255 38,86,255

*Addition consists of transfer from Computers, Servers & Network.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 7 : Financial assets

7 (a) Trade receivables - Current

Amount in Rs.

As at As at

Paiticulars March 31,2021  March 31, 2020
Unsecured, considered good 17,13,75,485 13,89,73,813
Credit Impaired -
Less : Allowance for doubtful debts -

= 17,13,75,485 13,89,73,813
Less: Refundable Liability - (1,48,14,688)
Total Trade receivables 17,13,75,485 12,41,59,125

I. NO traae rece:vaE‘es are aue ||om ﬁirectors or Oﬁ :er omcers Oi EE Empany elﬁ:er severa"y or )omﬂ

with any person nor any trade receivables are due from firms or private companies respectively in which

any director is a director, a partner or a member.

Allowance for doubtful debts

The Company has provided allowance for doubtful debts based on the lifetime expected credit loss model
using provision matrix. Movement in allowance for doubtful debt :

Amount in Rs.
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
“Balance at the beginning of the year B 2,04,155
Add : Allowance for the year - -
Less : Write off of bad debts (Net of recovery) - (2,04,155)
Balance at the end o year - -
7 (b) Cash and cash equivalent Amount in Rs.
As at As at
Papicolars March 31,2021  March 31, 2020
Cash on hand - -

Balance with Bank

Current accounts and debit balance in cash credit accounts 55,95,828 11,51,485

In Deposit Account = x
Total cash and cash equivalents 55,95,828 11,51,485
7 (c) Other financial assets Amount in Rs.

As at As at

Particulars March 31,2021  March 31, 2020
{Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Non-current

Security deposits 50,025 1,92,87,351
Total other financial assets 50,025 1,92,87,351
7 (d) : Financial Assets by category Amount in Rs.
PERicaary FVTPL FvOCI Amortised Cost
March 31, 2021
Trade Receivables - - 17,13,75,485
Cash & Bank balance - - 55,95,828
Other financial assets - - 50,025

Total Financial Assets

17i7°I21|338

March 31, 2020
Trade Receivables
Cash & Bank balance
Other financial assets

12,41,59,125
11,51,485
1,92,87,351

Total Financial Assets

For Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies, refer Note 32

14,45,97,961

Fair value disclosure for financial assets and liabilities are in Note 30 and fair value hierarchy disclosures are in Note 31

Note 8 : Other current / non-current assets

Amount in Rs.

Particulars

As at

As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Non-current

Capital advances

Current
Advance to suppliers

11,95,486

69,86,311

11,95,486

1,31,65,929

69,86,311

1,31,65,929



Arvind True Blue Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Balance with Government Authorities (Refer Note 1 below) 3,31,65,586 1,94,15,416
Returnable Asset - 12,03,17,811
Prepaid expenses 3,05,547 2,39,903
Other Current Assets 2,82,54,749 4,06,23,669

6,87,12,193 19,37,62,728

¥. %hnce With Government Authorities mamly CONSISt OF nput credit avaied

Note 9 : Inventories (At lower of cost and net realisable value)

Amount in Rs,
Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Stock-in-trade and Accessories 11,43.29.217 11,11,31,597
Jotal —11,43,29,217 _ 11,11,31,597

1. Inventory write downs are accounted, considering the nature of inventory, ageing and net realisable value for Rs.
75,82,136/- (March 31, 2020 Rs. 7,22,65,226/-). The changes in write downs are recognised as an expense in the
Ind AS Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Note 10 : Equity share capital

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Particulars No. of shares Amountin Rs. No. of shares Amount in Rs.

Authorised share capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each (March 31, 20,00,000 2,00,00,000 20,00,000 2,00,00,000
2020: Rs. 10 each)

Issued and subscribed share capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each (March 31, 11,429 1,14,290 11,429 1,14,290
2020: Rs. 10 each)

Subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each (March 31, 11,429 1,14,290 11,429 1,14,290
2020: Rs. 10 each)

Total 11,429 1,14,290 11,429 1,14,290

10.1. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Reporting period

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

No. of shares Amountin Rs. No. of shares Amount in Rs.
At the beginning of the period 11,429 1,14,290 11,429 1,14,290
Add: Issue of Share Capital - = = 3
Qutstanding at the end of the period 11,429 14,290

10.2. Terms/Rights attached to the equity shares

The Company has one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 each. Each shareholder is
entitled to one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to
receive the remaining assets after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

10.3. Shares Held by Holding Company
Dacticiiare As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

No. of shares Amountin Rs. No. of shares Amount in Rs.
Arvind Limited - (along with no[nipeesz = = 10,000 87.50%
Arvind Sports Fashion Private Limited (w.e.f.
December 31, 2020) A0 5505 : -

10.4. Number of Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% Shares in the company

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Name of the Shareholder % of % of

No. of shares B holdin No. of shares ' holdi

Arvind Sports Fashion Private Limited 10,000 87.50% 10,000 87.50%
Sachin Tendulkar 1,429 12.50% 1,429 12.50%
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10.5. Preference share capital

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Particulars No. of shares Amountin Rs. No. of shares Amount in Rs.

Authorised share capital

0.001% Compulsory Convertible Non- 8,20,00,000 82,00,00,000 1,99,00,000 19,90,00,000
Cumulative Preference shares of Rs. 10 each

(March 31. 2020: Rs. 10 each)

Issued and subscribed share capital

0.001% Compulsory Convertible Non- 8,10,00,000 81,00,00,000 1,60,00,000 16,00,00,000
Cumulative Preference shares of Rs. 10 each

(March 31. 2020: Rs. 10 each)

Subscribed and fully paid up

0.001% Compulsory Convertible Non- 8,10,00,000 81,00,00,000 1,60,00,000 16,00,00,000
Cumulative Preference shares of Rs. 10 each

(March 31. 2020: Rs. 10 each)

Lotal 8.10,00,000 _81,00,00,000 _1,00,00,000 _16,00,00,000,

10.6. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Reporting period

Particul As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
diigiiat i _No. of shares Amount in Rs. No. of shares Amount in Rs.
At the beginning of the period 1,60,00,000 16,00,00,000 1,60,00,000 16,00,00,000

Add: Issue of Share Capital 6,50,00,000 65,00,00,000

10.7. Terms/Rights attached to the preference shares

The Preference shareholders have priority in respect of dividend and repayment of capital vis-a-vis equity shares. The
preference shareholders are not entitled to participate in any surplus funds of the Company and are also not entitled to
partcipate in surplus assets and profits in case of winding up of the Company. The payment of dividend to preference
shareholders is on a non-cumulative basis. The preference shares shall be convertible into equity shares at the end of
the 19th year from the date of issue or such other date as may be decided by the board of Directors at its discretion,
provided it should not be exceeding 19 years from the date of issue. The preference shareholders do not have any
voting rights, save and except as permitted by law.

10.8. Shar Holdin

Pacticalcre As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No. of shares  Amountin Rs. No. of shares Amount in Rs.

Arvind Limited - (along with nomlneesz - 1,60,00,000 100.00%
Arvind Sports Fashion Private Limited (w.e.f.
December 31' 2020) 8,10,00,000 100.00%’0 = =

10.9. Number of Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% Shares in the company

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Name of the Shareholder No: of ihicres % of % of

No. of shares
shareholding _shareholding
Arvind Sports Fashion Private Limited 8,10,00,000 100.00% -

10.10. Objective, policy and procedure of capital management, refer Note 33.
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Note 11 : Other Equity
Amount in Rs.
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31,2020

Particulars

Note 11.1 Reserves & Surplus
Surplus in statement of profit and loss

Balance as per last financial statements (65,69,84,412) (39,35,93,493)
Add: Transition Effect of Ind AS 116 - (1,45,05,795)
Add: Profit/ (Loss) for the year (12,40,30,464) (24,86,63,605)
Add / (Less): OCI for the year i 5,97,314 (2,21,519)
Balance at the end of the year (78,04,17,562) (65,69,84,412)
Total reserves & surplus
Total Other equity (78.04,17,562) __(65,69,84,412)
Note 12 : Financial liabilities
12 (a) Borrowings Amount in Rs.
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Short-term Borrowings (Refer Note 1(a) below)

Unsecured
Intercorporate Deposit
From Related Parties {Refer Note 27) 23,37,34,076 76,39,94,076
Total short-term borrowings 23,37,34,076 76,39,94,076
| win: 23,37,34,076 76,39,94,076

Rate of Interest
a. Intercorporate Deposits carry interest rates at rate of 8.75% per annum.

12 (b) Trade payables

Amount in Rs.
As at As at

Particulans March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Current

Other Trade Payables (Refer Note below)

-Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 6,48,659 94,16,918

-Total outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 6,33,52,380 12,60,05,679
Total 6,40, 22,597

er trade payables are not-interest bearing and are normally se on ys terms

Based on the information available, the disclosures as required under section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
Small Enterprise Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 are presented as follows :

Amount in Rs.
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any
supplier at the end of each accounting year: :
i) Principal 6,48,659 94,16,918
i) Interest = 4,58,760
(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, -
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the
amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year;

(c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 4,58,760
payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but

without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 4,58,760
accounting year; and

(e) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 4,58,760
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to

the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure

under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,

2006
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12 (c) Other financial liabilities Amount in Rs.
As at As at
! gt March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Current
Security Deposit 55,50,000 39,00,000
Interest accrued and due 5,09,29,325 4,60,93,930
Payable to employees - 12,04,376
Iotal 5,64,79,325 5'11|9 |3
12(d) : Financial Liabilities by category = Amount in Rs.
Particulars FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost
March 31, 2021
Borrowings - 23,37,34,076
Lease Liabilities - 59,49,518
Trade payables - 6,40,01,039
Security Deposits - 55,50,000
Interest accrued and due - 5,09,29,325
Total Financial liabilities - 36,01,63,958

March 31, 2020
Borrowings

- 76,39,94,076

Lease Liabilities - 14,20,30,038
Trade payables - 13,54,22,597
Security Deposits - 39,00,000
Payable to employees - 12,04,376
Interest accrued and due - 4,60,93,930
Total Financial liabilities - m

For Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies, refer Note 32

Fair value disclosure for financial assets and liabilities are in Note 30 and fair value hierarchy disclosures are in Note 31

Note 13: Provisions

Amount in Rs.

Particulars

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Long-term
Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 26)

Provision for leave encashment 92,379 7,82,831
Provision for Gratuity 47,843 10,23,630
1,340,233 185,086,461
Short-term
Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 26)
Provision for leave encashment 1,67,372 3,36,389
Provision for Gratuity 69,434 3.87.394
253,853 7,23,953
Togl 7 44
Note 14 : Other current liabilities
Amount in Rs.
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current

Statutory dues including provident fund and tax deducted at source 59,07,295 60,41,787
Advance from Customers - 5,41,387
Other Liabilities 1,717 1,717
Total 55,55,015 65,“,891
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Note 15 : Revenue from operations

Amount in Rs.

Year Ended Year Ended
Particuiars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Sale of products 11,69,43,868 13,47,33,706

Operating income

Exchange difference (net) 1,35,396 -
Jotal 26 13.47
1. Disaggregation of revenue Amount in Rs.
Particula Year Ended Year Ended
dmans s March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
A. Revenue based on Geography
i. Domestic 11,70,79,264 13,47,33,706
ii. Export - =
11,70,79,264 13,47,33,706
B. Revenue based on Business Segment
Branded Apparels and Accessories 11,70,79,264 13,47,33,706
11. Reconciliation of Revenue from Operation with Contract Price Amount in Rs.
% Year Ended Year Ended
Frsticine March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Contract Price 21,83,43,777 21,23,77,403
Less:
Schemes and Discounts 1,40,07,106 4,22,00,372
Sales Return 8,72,57,407 3,53,36,136
Customer Loyalty Program - 1,07,189
Total Revenue from Operations 11,70,79,264 13,47,33,706
Note 16 : Other income
s | Amount in Rs.
Year Ended Year Ended
rti
Tenieviin March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Sundry Credit Balances Appropriated 6,55,060 19,40,734
Miscellaneous income 43,28,052 2,37,528
Gain on Reassessment of Leases 2,11,48,006 -
Lol 26131118 31,78,262
Note 17 : Purchases of stock-in-trade
= ul Amount in Rs.
Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Garments and Accessories 11,81,56,764 20,64,84,934
Jotal_ 11,81,56,764 20,64,84,034_

Note 18 : Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

Amount in Rs.

Particulars

Year Ended

Stock at the end of the year
Stock-in-trade

Stock at the beginning of the year
Stock-in-trade

11,43,29,217

11,11,31,597

Year Ended

March 31,2021 March 31,2020

11,11,31,597

5,80,11,820

Total
e

(31,97,620

5,31,19,777
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Note 19 : Employee benefits expense

Amount in Rs.

Year Ended Year Ended
particuies March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Salaries, wages, bonus, commission, etc. (Refer Note 26) 1,13,62,627 3,26,80,849
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note 26) 3,76,761 12,90,057
Welfare and training expenses 1,72,110 9,18.433
Jotal 1,911,498 ____ 3,48,89,339

Note 20 : Finance costs

Amount in Rs.

el Year Ended Year Ended
e March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Interest Expenses on
Lease Liabilities 65,85,946 1,69,90,522
Others 5,66,94,559 5,16,81,150
Tgtal 6,32,56,505 6,86,71,672

Note 21 : Depreciation and amortization expense

Amount in Rs.

Year Ended Year Ended
Particwers March 31, 2021 March 31, 220
Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment (Refer Note 5) 59,60,606 59,26,286
Depreciation on Right-of-use Assets 1,33,86,369 2,43,39,866
Amortization on Intangible assets (Refer Note 6) 10,26,456 10,26,456
Jotal 2,03,73,431 2,92,608

Note 22 : Other expenses

Amount in Rs.

Year Ended Year Ended

Rticiiees March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Power and fuel 4,99,383 19,33,068
Insurance 5,08,996 5,45,448
Printing, stationery & communication 27,516 17,23,840
Short Term Rent (Refer Note 29) 42,59,683 40,81,765
Commission & Brokerage 1,84,03,021 30,283
Rates and taxes 28,235 1,48,870
Repairs :

To Building - 92,900

To Others 50,84,804 29,34,224
Freight, insurance & clearing charge ~ 85,95,656
Legal & Professional charges 19,25,698 24,48,475
Housekeeping Charges - 3,08,670
Security Charges - 2,37,176
Conveyance & Travelling expense - 22,24,797
Advertisement and Publicity 47,90,173 4,33,39,092
Packing Materials Expenses - 7,70,082
Contract Labour Charges 1,17,15,189 1,39,27,277
Product Development Expenses 25,16,371 38,15,773
Auditor’s remuneration (Refer Note a below) 6,50,000 3,00,000
Bank charges 99,617 5,83,361
Exchange Difference Loss (Net) - 11,33,597
Miscellaneous expenses 58,62,226 81,82,443

Jotal,

5,63,70,912 9.73,56,797

a. Break up of Auditor's Remuneration

Particulars

Amount in Rs.

Payment to Auditors as :
Auditors
For tax audit
For other certification work

For reimbursement of expenses

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
4,50,000 3,00,000
90,000 -

1,10,000 -

Total

SS0000 300,000




Arvind True Blue Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 23 : Contingent liabilities

Amount in Rs.
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2021 _March 31, 2020
Contingent liabilities not provided for - -
Note 24 : Capital commitment and other commitments
Amount in Rs.
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Capital commitments

Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be

executed on capital account and not provided for - -
Other commitments = -

Note 24 -A: Income Tax

The Company has unused tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation amounting to Rs. 73,93,52,934/- and
Rs. 1,88,36,131/- respectively as at March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020: Rs. 60,72,11,677/- and Rs.
1,37,79,873/- respectively). Tax credits on losses and unabsorbed depreciation have not been
recognised on the basis that recovery is not probable in the foreseeable future. Unrecognised tax losses
will expire till March 31, 2029, if unutilized, based on the year of origination in a phased manner.

Note 25 : Segment Reporting

Identification of Segments:

The chief operational decision maker monitors the operating results of its Business segment separately
for the purpose of making decision about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the
financial statements. Operating segment have been identified on the basis of nature of products and
other quantitative criteria specified in the Ind AS 108. Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") of the
company.

The Company's business activity falls within a single operating business segment of Branded Apparels
(Garments and Accessories) through Retail and Departmental Store facilities.

Geographical segment
Geographical segment is considered based on sales within India and rest of the world.
Amount in Rs.

Year Ended Year Ended
PatHcyiary March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Segment Revenue*
a) In India 11,70,79,264 13,47,33,706
b) Rest of the world = -
Total Sales 11,70,79,264 13,47,33,706
Carrying Cost of Segment Assets**
a) In India 39,61,46,726 60,48,90,030
b) Rest of the world = -
Total 39,61,46,726 60,48,90,030
Carrying Cost of Segment Non Current Assets**@
a) In India 3,60,83,978 15,53,97,744
b) Rest of the world - -
Total 3,60,83,978 15,53,97,744

* Based on location of Customers
** Based on location of Assets
@ Excluding Financial Assets and Deferred Tax Assets

Note:
Considering the nature of business of Company in which it operates, the Company deals with various

customers including multiple geographics. Consequently, none of the customer contribute materially to
the revenue of the Company.
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Note 26 : Disclosure pursuant to Employee benefits

A Defined Contribution Plans

The following amounts are recognised as expense and included In Note 19 "Employee benefit expenses”

Particulars Year Ended Gl_. -ﬁ

March 31, 2021 March 33, 2020
Provident Fund and Contributory

7,38,277 8,82,106
o vesaas Z38377 582406

B Defined Benefit Plans

The C y has foll g post employment benefits which are In the nature of defined benefit plans:
Gratulty

The Company provides for gratulty for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratulty Act, 1972, Employees who are in continuous service for a period of S years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratulty payable on retiremer

the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied with the number of years of service.

Amount In Rs.
Remeasurement gains/(losses) In other comprehensive Income
Return on Actuarial Actuarial
Sub-total plan assets  changes changes Contribution
2019-20 April 1, 2020 Service cost  Netinterest included in Benefitpald (o cluding arising from arising from  Experience _.wn.__...-. QNJ“. sby March 31, 2021
expense statement of t changes in hanges in adjustments oct employer
profit and loss Included in demographi  financial
nat lnt, eb -~ 1
Gratulty
252_. benefit obligation 14,11,024 2,63,101 73,514 3,36,615 (10,33,048) - (1,120) 496 597,938 5,97,314 1,17,277
Ir vi of a - - s - -
Total benefit liability 14,211,024 253,101 23,514 336,615 _(1033.048) - (1.320) 496 5.97.938 597 314 117,277
March 31,2020 Changes In defined benefit obligation and plan assets Amount In Rs.
Gratulty cost n.l“.&..."-ll.:‘i of profit : Remeasurement gains/(losses) In other comprehensive iIncome
Return on Actuarial
Actuarial
plan assets changes
2019-20 April 1, 2019 Sub-total  gonefit paid (excluding arising from _ Changes sub-total  COMIDUON e 31, 2020
Servics cost Net Interest Included In amounts  changes In arising from Experience inchided In s by
expense statement of 3 changes In adjustments employer
incduded in demographi ocI
profit and loss AT = financial
expense) assumptions 2>Sumptions
Gratuity
Defined benefit obligation 8,68,426 2,60,289 60,790 3,21,079 - . . (70,658) (1,50,861) (2,21,519) 14,11,024
Fair value of plan assets - - 5
(70,658) _(150861) (2.21519) 15,11,023

Discount rate 3.86% 5.21%

Future salary Increase 6.00% Store - 8.00%
Z Mgmt - 6.00%
Expected rate of return on plan assets - -
Attrition rate 65.00% Store - 66.70%
- Mgmt - 23.10%
Morality rate during employment Indian Assured  Indlan Assured

Lives Mortality  Lives Mortality
(2006-08) Uit  (2006-08) Uit
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Increase / (decrease) In defined benefit obligation (Impact)

Amount In Rs.
Particulars Sensitivity level Year Ended Year Ended
= March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Gratuity
Discount rate 1% Increase (809) (40,688)
1% Decrease 835 44,112
Salary Increase 1% Increase 810 43,317
1% Decrease (800) (40,741)

Attrition rate 1% Increase (641) (7,351)

Gratuity
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 69,434 3,87,394
Between 2 and 5 years 49,748 7,37,384
Beyond S years 1,470 3,69,879

Leave encashment

Salarles and Wages Includes folk g towards p made as per actuarial valuation In respect of
accumulated leave encashment/compensated absences.
SRR Year Ended  Year
Leave enashment - 1
- 1
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Note 27 : Related Party cti

Aspe'd\ek\danmti\qsmldardm'WPmD&dmu'(mbksu),hndndparﬁadw
LQompa 3re as follows
Ultimate Holding Company w.e.f. December 31, 2020 (Holding Company up to
Arvind Limited December 30, 2020)
Arvind Sports Fashion Private Limited w.e.f. December 31, 2020 (Fellow Subsidiary Company
up to December 30, 2020)
pany and rehed Upon by the AUGIOrS.
b T cti with d parties
Amount in Rs.
Uttimate Holding| Sienificant influence | ;5,4 yenture
Particulars Company by Key Management Portner
Personnel and Non-
Hl’ ch of Goods and Material
March 31, 2021 54,51,330 - -
March 31, 2020 2,99,71,988 = =
Sales of Goods and Materlals
March 31, 2021 2,57,655 = =
March 31, 2020 1,02,43,775 - -
Recelving of Services
March 31, 2021 3,28,874 41,79,559
March 31, 2020 1,41,465 2,05,04,435 1,04,00,000
Issue of Preference share Capital
March 31, 2021 65,00,00,000 - -
March 31, 2020 - - -
Interest Expense
March 31, 2021 5,65,687,903 - -
March 31, 2020 $,12,22,390 - -
Loan Given/(Repaid)
March 31, 2021 (72,07,00,000) - -
March 31, 2020 (9,67,33,000) - -
Loan Taken/(Repayment of Loan)
March 31, 2021 19,04,40,000 - -
March 31, 2020 46,65,09,000 - -
¢ Balances
Amount in Rs.
Ultimate significant Influence
Particulars Holding by Key Management ”‘!":"2':"
Company Personnel and Non-
Executive Director
ITrade and Other Receivable
March 31, 2021 - - -
March 31, 2020 1,13,88,629 - -
Trade and Other Payable
March 31, 202 5,09,29,325 85,77,826 -
March 31, 2020 4,90,64,487 1,38,26,739 -
Payable in respect of Loans
March 31, 2021 23,37,34,076 - -
March 31, 2020 76,39,94,076 - -

d Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
1)Tma&mqkﬁdimﬁmmmmma&mmmmmﬂmmmmarm's
IenommsamO‘tsnn&rmba{ancsodw'ﬁmbangivenamkm,umevear—mdmmsemredam
interest free and settlement occurs in cash.

2) Loans given by related party carries interest rate of 8.75% (March 31, 2020 : 8.75%)

e Commitments with related parties
The Company has not provided any ¢ i t to the related party (March 31, 2020: Rs. Nil)
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Note 28 : Earning per share
Amount in Rs.

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Particulars

Earning per share (Basic and Diluted)

Profit/(Loss) attributable to ordinary equity holders (12,40,30,464) (24,86,63,605)
Total no. of equity shares at the end of the year (In Nos.) 11,429 11,429
Weighted average number of equity shares

For basic EPS (In Nos.) 11,429 11,429

For diluted EPS (In Nos.) 11,429 11,429
Nominal value of equity shares - In Rs. 10 10
Basic earning per share - In Rs. (10,852.26) (21,757.25)
Diluted earning per share - In Rs. (10,852.26) (21,757.25)

Weighted average number of equity shares

(In Nos.)

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS 11,429 11,429
Weighted ber of ity sh j

di'e“:gone average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of 11,429 11,429
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Note 29 : Leases

The Company has taken Showrooms and other facilities on lease period of 1 to 5 years with option of renewal. Disclosures as per Ind

AS 116 - Leases are as follows:

Changes in the carrying value of right of use assets ssuildlng)

Particulars

Amount in Rs.

Year Ended

Balance at the beginning of the year
Recognition of ROU Asset on account of adoption of Ind AS 116
Additions

11,71,00,680

Year Ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

14,14,40,546

Deletions (9,89,36,593) -
Depreciation (1,33,86,369) (2,43,39,866)
Balance at the end of the period 47,77,718 11,71,00,680
Movement in lease liabilities Amount in Rs.
Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars

March 31, 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year

Recognition of ROU Asset on account of adoption of Ind AS 116
Additions

Deletions

Finance cost accrued during the year
Payment of lease liabilities

14,20,30,038

(12,00,84,599)
65,85,946

March 31, 2020

15,59,46,341

1,69,90,522

e
’ ’ (4 (A (4

alance e end of the pel
Current 21,51,693 1,94,04,455
Non-current 37,97,825 12,26,25,583
Contractual maturities of lease liabilities Amount in Rs.
Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Less than one year 21,51,693 1,94,04,455
One to five years 37,97,825 10,47,43,551
More than five years - 1,78,82,032
Total 59,49,518 14,20,30,038

The company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet

the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

The Company incurred Rs. 42,59,683/- for the year ended March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020 Rs. 40,81,765/-) towards expenses relating

to short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
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mzo:mm».m::.mnmm-uwwm

Setoutbelowisaeomparison,bydaﬁ,ofu\emnyingamwntsa\dfairvaheofmmmpany'sﬁnandalinstrun\eMS,otherthanuvosewithcarryinganwntsmatam
reasonable approximations of fair values:
Amount in Rs.
As at As at

Particulars March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Carrying Amount 23,37,34,076 76,39,94,076
Fair Value 23,37,34,076 76,39,94,076

The management assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans trade receivables, other current financial assets, trade payables
and other current financial fiabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liauidation sale. The followina mﬁwdsandassumotionswereusedtoesﬁmatemefairvalues

The fair value of borrowings and other financial liabilities is calculated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debts on similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities.

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts that the Company has determined that market participants would take into account when pricing the
investments.

Note 31 : Fair value hierarchy
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities
Amount in Rs.

Fair value measurement using
GloNsd yriiaa - - ONGRE." . < A
Particulars Date of valuation observable unobservable
Total active markets
(Level 1) inputs inputs
{level 2) lleveld)
Liabilities measured at fair value
Borrowinas March 31, 2021 23,37,34,076 — 23,37,34,076 -
March 31, 2020 76,39,94,076 ' - 76,39,94,076 z
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Note 32 : Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies

ﬂlecompanvsptindpalﬁnandalﬁatiliﬁes.o!hert!'nndsivaﬁves,mmﬁsebmwiusmdm&oﬂispayab!e,memain‘mofm
financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and to support its operations. me_Cumany‘gpmopal_ﬁnanoalaaseumdude
xmm,mm,mmmmmm&m-wmmumdmmmwmmmm.

mmwy'sadvmmhmmarﬂgaadtmtmdﬁmﬁwﬁskmmmninkviseanypdmeeﬂects_onmeﬁmndd
wmammm.mwmmm:wwwmm,mmm@mm
memnmmmemwmmmmwmnmmmm. Derivatives are
usedmhsivdvfwmdomgpwposasmdmtasuadm/speuaﬁveim.

mcompanv'sriskrnanaoemrtiswﬁedwtbyaTreasuwdepaMmderpdideswwedbymaoardofdima_nﬁ. Company's treasury
identifies, evaluates andmﬁnm#ﬁdshdmmwnmwmﬂmaw:owﬁmmﬂu.mwduwldeswnttmmwples_fnr
ovwdlrkknnnagawk.asweﬂasﬂdsmvuhgspedﬁcm,swnsmmoerbkimtraterisk.uaditrisk.useofdeﬁvabve
financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

a) Market risk

s )Matketriskisﬁleﬁskmmefairvahedmmmashﬂmolaﬁmialhmwtﬁﬂﬂua;mebeameofd\angesinmarkatpﬁcas.mrket
:iskmmprisesmtypesofmk:mmﬁdt.mfbkawmmm&ﬂlaseqmmdskammmmkFmandal
ir\strm\entsawbymatketﬁskhdwebmwfings,depodts,Irwmﬂs,uadeandoﬁtermceivabls,tﬁdeandoﬂ\erpayablsmd
derivative financial instruments.
Wmmwmmmmmmﬂcmﬂymhﬂmambasedon‘setsiﬁvinysis"onsymwic
basisﬂismdunbbsﬂ\eﬁskmanaoustoiduﬁfvmﬁdtpodﬁmofmeaﬂies.Su\dtivityamiysispmvidsmam)dmeqmndﬁaﬁonof
ﬂnmmmdnwmmmwmmmmuanamdﬁcsaofmpﬁmTheriskestimatesptwidedham
assume:

-amlﬂshiﬁdso—basbmmdmm&meyiddcmmallm.
-asitmntarm,mmmmmwhhmmmmm/dwmdaaag&nﬁaﬂmwm
-mﬁincmldeaaasehemitypﬁusofallhwasummmmmaﬁvemamwhid\aredassﬁedasﬁnandalassetmeawredatwoc

Mpotenﬁalmticimpaa.dwmﬂm&munpﬁus,hbasedmﬂnmmdmm/hvmmamﬁmmmﬂem
m:atedd\anoesreadtinofmmmesmsiﬁvityanalvsis.kmalrasuhsttutmm:dedinmsmtanmtofpmﬁt&hsmaydiﬁwmmiaﬂy
from these estimates due to actual developments in the global financial markets.

mmmﬁninmdmnshmatetvaﬁablﬁm:mecarrvingvsuuofgnmity,pensionmdod\erpost-mﬁmnent

The following assumption has been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:
-‘mesens'tiv'tydmmlevatsmmtofproﬁtahssiwnisﬂ\edfectofu\emmdlanoesinrwpecﬁvemarketrisls.Thisisbsedon
MWMNMWMxMeWMMMMMMJmJWWM.

Interest rate risk
lntemstrateriskaﬁssfrommassu'ﬁvityofﬁnancialawetsandﬁabﬂiﬁestod\amesinmarketmtesofintaresLTheCanpanyseekstoniﬁoate
m:hkwmhmMWMnﬁmmHmm;m&mmwmm interest rate swaps. Interest
rateswaoagreanensaeusedtoadj\&ﬂ\epropotﬁmoftotaidebt.&atmsubjedmvaﬁab\emdﬁmdimraus.

mdeaninterestrateswapagreetw\t,memmaweimeragmstopayanamoumemxalmaspadiedﬁxed-rateofintystﬁmesamﬁonal
prin:ipalamomt,andtnreceiveinmtnrnanaMMequdmawedﬁedvth&mdimm&msuNmnoﬁomImwMu,
vice-versa, to receive a fixed-rate amount and to pay a variable-rate nt. The notional ts of the contracts are not exchanged. No other
c&hmvmsmmdeummmkmwmtomamdy,inwhichcasemealmuntpaidormceivedinsemgnemis
muwmwmammofmm,mwymﬁnmmwmammdmdmmm
obligations to exchange payments under the terms of the contract.

As at March 31, 2021, 100% of the Company’s Borrowings are at fixed rate of interest (March 31, 2020: 100%)

Foreign currency risk

Fomo'ncurrmriﬂ:isthetiskﬂ\atmehirvalwormcashﬂowsofanexpoanwillﬂumsatebetz\se. of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Company transacts business in local currency and in foreign currency, primarily in USD. The Company has obtained foreign currency loans
and has foreign currency trade payables and receivables etc. and is, therefore, exposed to foreign exchange risk. The Company may use forward
contracts, foreign exchange options or currency swaps towards hedging risk resulting from changes and fluctuations in foreign cumrency exchange
rate. These foreign exchange contracts, carried at fair value, may have varying maturities varying depending upon the primary host contract
requirements and risk management strategy of the Company.
mmWymmmeMWhMawemdmmnmw,asapprovedbyBoardasper
established nisk management policy.

(b) Credit risk
Cmdkﬁ*b@mkmaawmwwwﬂmmisowgwomunwamwdmm“mmIeadingwaﬁru\daihs.
The&mpanvrsemosedtoaaditrisk&omiuwaaﬁmacﬁviﬁes(pﬁmivhademodvables)amﬁomitsﬁmoadivi&s,indudnodeoos'ls
with banks, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments. i
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Trade receivables

Cmuedtrid&ismnaoedbyeadnbusinessuritsubjoctmtheCmaw’sestabfshedpoﬁcv, procedures and control relating to customer
cmditﬁskmanaqatmnt.'rrademceivabhsmmmabadmandmmlvonmdavswsodaysaadit_term.Credstlnmtgsare
stabl'shedfotal!ummbamdonmn&wm.mmﬂmwmmmmuhwmmdandmyspmm
majorcustnmetsafegeneralymvemdbylettemofaedn.TheCanpanvhamemmuaﬁmofmdtriskasmenmwbasensmdely
distributed both economically and geographically.
Aninpainnmtanalvsisispetfom\edateadureoorﬁmdahaonmindividualhsisformjord‘m. In addition, a large number of minor

Com;)anydoesnothddMum.mmmmmmmdﬂmmmecﬁMsm,asits
customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markats.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed wmemnmm'smmdmmmmm
Comomy'spolicy.mﬁdmwmmmVMawwedmmmmMMmumMrequremengs
under the counterparty risk assessment process. TMCmpanymmﬂnuﬂnmﬁms,aedksweadsamﬁmmdmﬂ\offtsmum

Basedmtson-odngasmtofommwpaﬁvﬁsk,memmanyadjustsis P e to various ¢ parties. The Company's maximum
exposuretoaeditriskformeoompmentsofﬂ\endamesheetasismearrvinqamwmasdisdmdinNoteao.
(<) Liquidity risk

quuidityﬁskismeﬁskmatme(:onwwmavnotbeabletomeetitspmsentandﬁnurecashandconwalobligationswithoutincurﬁno
unacceptable losses. The Company's objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of fiquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements.
Trec«npamcbsdymaﬁmitsﬁwﬂaywﬁﬁonmdeuwsammmsysm.ltmai\tainsadequabemwofﬁnaminq
indudingbilataralloans,debtandoverd’a&fmmbothdomesticwirtynationalbanksatanopﬁmisedcost.naisoenjovsmaccessm
domestic capital markets across equity. s ot )

The table below summarises the maturi weﬁleofmeCompaw'sﬁnmudlwhlmesbasedmcmramlmdmmtedpaymens:

Amount in Rs.
Less than 1 1year to 2 3years to5
Particulars ear Vears After 5 years Total
As at March 31, 2021
Interest baaring borrowings* 23,37,34,076 - - - 23,37,34,076
Lease Liabilities 21,51,693 37,97,825 - - 59,49,518
Trade payables 6,40,01,039 - - - 6,40,01,039
Security deposits from customers 55,50,000 - - - 55,50,000
Other financial liabilities# 5,09,29,325 - - - 5,09,29,325
—35,63,66,133 37,907,835 = = 36,01,63,958

As at March 31, 2020
Intarest bearing borrowings* 76,39,94,076 - - - 76,39,94,076
Lease Liabilities 1,94,04,455 5,12,23,346 5,35,20,205 1,78,82,032 14,20,30,038
Trade payables 13,54,22,597 - - - 13,54,22,597
Security deposits from customers 39,00,000 - - - 39,00,000
Other financial liabilities# 72,98,306 98,306

4 lndudasmaﬁualjgmmstpawneﬂbasedmhm&mema’ﬁnoatdwmdof&erepofﬁngoeﬁodoverﬂvetenotofmebormvdms.
# Other finanaal liabilities includes interest accrued but not due Rs. Nil (March 31, 2020 Rs. Nil)

Note 33 : Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital manag nt, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the C: ’s capital gement is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital
structure and healthy capital ratios in order to support its busi and imise shareholder value.

TheCompanymagnoesitsmpkﬂmmmandmhasadjmntstoitmlightofdumesheconomiccondiﬁmsorbmsinessmdremems.
Tomahtainorad;mstmgapitalsuumre,mmymwmthmewm,Mmaphlmmm«im
ngwshaes.mcompanymomtomcap'tal\singaoexhgmio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes
within nat debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and short-term deposits (induding other bank balance).

Amount in Rs. _
Particulars AN Avet
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (Note 12) 23,37,34,076 76,39,94,076
Less: Cash and Cash equivalent (induding other bank balance and (55,95,828) (11,51,485)
Book Overdraft)
et aalt
Equity share capital (Note 10) 1,14,290 1,14,290
Other Note 11) 29582438 (49,60.84,412)

cal 56,96

26,9¢

m
gnm rag

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial
covenants attached to the interast-bearing loans and borrowings that defina capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial
covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest
bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.

Loan covenants

geng:'dﬂ\etem'sofmajorbonwhqfadiﬁes,mmnpmvhasoompﬁedwimmereqdredﬁnamialowmantsﬁuuughommereposﬁng
S.
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Note 34 : Note on COVID -19

World Health Organisation (WHO) declared outbreak of Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) a global pandemic on March
11, 2020. Consequent to this, Government of India declared lockdown on March 23, 2020 and the Company temporarily
suspended the operations in all the units of the Company in compliance with the lockdown instructions issued by the
Central and State Governments. COVID-19 has substantially impacted the normal business operations of the Company
by way of interruption in production, supply chain disruption, unavailability of personnel, closure/lock down of
production facilities etc. during the lock-down period which has been extended till May 17, 2020. Production and
supply of goods has commenced at various dates during the month of May 2020 and in a staggered manner during the
year at some of the manufacturing locations of the Company after obtaining permissions from the appropriate
government authorities. The Company has witnessed significant improvement in its operations during the second half
of the year. Nearer to the year end, the operations of the Company were affected by the impact of the second wave
of COVID-19 pandemic.

The situation is changing rapidly giving rise to inherent uncertainty around the extent and timing of the potential
future impact of the COVID- 19 on revenue from operations, profitability, recoverability of Property Plant and
Equipment, investments and trade receivables.

The Company has made detailed assessment of its liquidity position for the next 12 months, recoverability of its assets
comprising of Property Plant and Equipment, Intangible assets, investments, inventories and trade receivables. Based
on current indicators of future economic conditions and estimates made by the Management of the Company, the
Company expects to recover the carrying amount of these assets.

As a result of the growing uncertainties with respect to COVID- 19, the impact of this pandemic may be different from
that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial results. The Company will continue to closely monitor any
material changes to future economic conditions.

Note 35:

The Code on Social Security, 2020 ("Code") relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment
benefits received Indian Parliament approval and Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been
published in the Gazzete of India. However, the date on which the code will come into effect has not been

notified. The Company will access the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related
impact in the period the code becomes effective.

Note 36 : New Accounting Pronouncements to be adopted on or after March 31, 2021

There are no standards or interpretations which are notified but not yet effective and that would be expected to have
a material impact on the Company in the current or future reporting periods.

Note 37 : Regrouped, Recast, Reclassified

Material regroupings: Appropriate adjustments have been made in the statements of assets and liabilities, statement
of profit and loss and cash flows, wherever required, by a reclassification of the corresponding items of income,
expenses, assets, liabilities and cash flows in order to bring them in line with the groupings as per the audited
financials of the Company as at March 31, 2021, prepared in accordance with Schedule III of Companies Act 2013.



NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

Corporate Information

Arvind True Blue Limited (“the Company”) is a company incorporated in India having its
registered office at Arvind Limited Premises, Naroda Road, Ahmedabad - 380025. The
Company is a subsidiary of Arvind Limited.

The Company trades in Men’s apparel and accessories through its exclusive business outlets,
online markets and on sale or return basis.

The Company’s Standalone Financial Statements were approved by Board of Directors in the
meeting held on May 18, 2021.

2. Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

2.1 Basis of Preparation and Presentation and Statement of Compliance

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on
the accrual basis except for the certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value,
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent notified (“the Act”).

Accounting policies were consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard
is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standards requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in use.

The Standalone Financial Statements comprising of Standalone Balance Sheet, Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, Standalone Statement of
Changes in Equity and Standalone Statement of Cash Flows as at March 31, 2020 have been
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of
Division II of schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant schedule III) as
applicable to Standalone financial statement.

2.2 Rounding of Amount

The Standalone Financials Statement are prepared in Indian Rupees (INR) and all the values
are rounded to nearest rupee as per the requirement of Schedule III, except when otherwise
indicated.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the Company in preparing its
Standalone Financial Statements consistently to all the periods presented:

3.1.Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-
current classification.

An asset is current when it is:



« Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating
cycle;

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

o Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
« Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
e It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
« Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
« There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period. :

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Operating cycle

Operating cycle of the Company is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing
and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. As the Company'’s normal operating cycle is
not clearly identifiable, it is assumed to be twelve months.

3.2.Use of estimates and judgements

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are
continuously evaluated by the Company and are based on historical experience and various
other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events) that the Company
believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Difference between actual results
and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known / materialised.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date,
or that occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as
at the reporting date.

3.3.Business combinations and goodwill

In accordance with Ind AS 101 provisions related to first time adoption, the Company has
elected to apply Ind AS accounting for business combinations prospectively from 1 April 2015.
As such, Indian GAAP balances relating to business combinations entered into before that
date, including goodwill, have been carried forward with minimal adjustment.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at
acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree.
For each business combination, the Company elects whether to measure the non-controlling



interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Business Combination under Common Control

A business combination involving entities or businesses under common control is a business
combination in which all of the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by
the same party or parties both before and after the business combination and the control is
not transitory. The transactions between entities under common control are specifically
covered by Ind AS 103. Such transactions are accounted for using the pooling-of-interest
method. The assets and liabilities of the acquired entity are recognised at their carrying
amounts of the parent entity’s Standalone Financial Statements with the exception of certain
income tax and deferred tax assets. No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or
recognise any new assets or liabilities. The only adjustments that are made are to harmonise
accounting policies. The components of equity of the acquired companies are added to the
same components within the Company’s equity. The difference, if any, between the amounts
recorded as share capital issued plus any additional consideration in the form of cash or other
assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred to other equity and is
presented separately from other capital reserves. The Company’s shares issued in
consideration for the acquired companies are recognized from the moment the acquired
companies are included in these financial statements and the financial statements of the
commonly controlled entities would be combined, retrospectively, as if the transaction had
occurred at the beginning of the earliest reporting period presented.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed
include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their
acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business
combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

> Deferred tax assets or liabilities, the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements and related to leases are recognised and measured in accordance with
Ind AS 12 Income Tax, Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits and Ind AS 116 Leases
respectively.

> Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the
acquiree or share - based payments arrangements of the Company entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquire are measured in
accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payments at the acquisition date.

> Assets (or disposal Companys) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with
Ind AS 105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.

» Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining
contractual term of the related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential
renewal of the reacquired right.

When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities
assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual



terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-
measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a
financial instrument and within the scope of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the
appropriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured
at subsequent reporting dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous
interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value
of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the
Company re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of
the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be
recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair
value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is
recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear
evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital
reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Company’s cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill
disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting
period in which the combination occurs, the Company reports provisional amounts for the
items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted



through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that
date. These adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement
period does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

3.4.Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s functional currency
spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on
settlement of such transaction and on translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rate are recognised in profit or loss.
They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or
loss, respectively).

3.5.Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivatives at fair value at the end of
each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value

measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either:

« In the principal market for the asset or liability
Or

« Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.



The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

« Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair
value measurement, such as derivative instruments and for non-recurring measurement, such
as asset held for sale.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties.
Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the management after discussion
with and approval by the Company’s Audit Committee. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
Management decides, after discussions with the Company’s external valuers, which valuation
techniques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s
accounting policies. For this analysis, management verifies the major inputs applied in the
latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and
other relevant documents.

Management, in conjunction with the Company'’s external valuers, also compares the change
in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether
the change is reasonable on yearly basis.



For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes
« Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
¢ Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy
* Property, plant and equipment & Intangible assets measured at fair value on the date
of transition
* Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)

3.6.Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the
plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criteria are met. When significant parts of Property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Company recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the
decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the
recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Borrowing cost relating to acquisition / construction of fixed assets which take substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to
the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of fixed assets that are not yet installed and ready
for their intended use at the balance sheet date.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds

and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided so as to write off the cost of assets
less residual values over their useful lives of the assets, using the straight line method as
prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013.

However, Leasehold Improvements have been depreciated considering the lease term or
useful life whichever is lower.



When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful life, they are
accounted for as separate items (Major Components) and are depreciated over their useful
life or over the remaining useful life of the principal assets whichever is less. Depreciation for
assets purchased/sold during a period is proportionately charged for the period of use.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

3.7.Leases

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings. The Company
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (1) the contract
involves the use of an identified asset (2) the Company has substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (3) the Company has the
right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset
(ROU) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee,
except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value
leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the
end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is
reasonably certain that they will be exercised. The right-of-use assets are initially recognized
at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs
less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets
are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the
recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is
determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that
are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future
lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of
domicile of the leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to

the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise
an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.



The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease
and the sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

1. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar
economic environment with a similar end date;

2. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases
with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application;

3. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at
the date of initial application;

4. Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which
transactions are leases. Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that
were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17.

3.8.Borrowing cost

Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per Effective Interest Rate (EIR) and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an
adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset.

Where funds are borrowed specifically to finance a project, the amount capitalised represents
the actual borrowing costs incurred. Where surplus funds are available out of money borrowed
specifically to finance a project, the income generated from such current investments is
deducted from the total capitalized borrowing cost. Where the funds used to finance a project
form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated using a weighted
average of rates applicable to relevant general borrowings of the Company during the year.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the statement of profit and loss
during the extended periods when the active development on the qualifying assets is
interrupted.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.



3.9.Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following
initial recognition, Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding
capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as finite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in
the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment
annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite
life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable.
If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.
Amortisation

Softwares are amortised over management estimate of its useful life of 5 years.

3.10.Inventories

Trims and Accessories, Stock-in-trade and Packing Materials are valued at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted
for as follows:

e Trims and Accessories: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on
first in, first out basis.

* Stock in Trade: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted
average basis.



All other inventories are valued at cost. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

3.11.Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs to sell
and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets of the Company.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent
market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair
value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecasts which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGU to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five
years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future
cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset,
except for a property previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to other
comprehensive income. In this case, the impairment is also recognised in other
comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount
of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either
individually or at the CGU level, as appropriate and when circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired.



3.12.Revenue Recognition

b)

The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of traded goods and related services.
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services
are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has
generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, except for the agency
services below, because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to
the customer.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when control of the goods
is transferred to the customer, i.e., generally on delivery of the goods.

Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the
amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. Some contracts for the sale of goods provide
customers with a right of return and discounts. The rights of return and discounts give rise to
variable consideration.

i. Rights of return

Certain contracts provide a customer with a right to return the goods within a specified period.
The Company uses the expected value method to estimate the goods that will be returned
because this method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to which the Company
will be entitled. The requirements in Ind AS 115 on constraining estimates of variable
consideration are also applied in order to determine the amount of variable consideration that
can be included in the transaction price. For goods that are expected to be returned, instead
of revenue, the Company recognises a refund liability. A right of return asset (and
corresponding adjustment to change in inventory is also recognised for the right to recover
products from a customer.

ii. Discounts

Discounts are offset against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the variable
consideration for the expected future discounts, the Company applies the expected value
method. The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable consideration is
primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract.

Contract balances

i. Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to
the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for
the earned consideration that is conditional.



<)

d)

ii. Trade receivables ' .
A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is

unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration
is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section (xiv) Financial instruments
- initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

iii. Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services
to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment
is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company
performs under the contract.

Assets and liabilities arising from rights of return

i. Right of return assets
Right of return asset represents the Company’s right to recover the goods expected to be

returned by customers. The asset is measured at the former carrying amount of the inventory,
less any expected costs to recover the goods, including any potential decreases in the value
of the returned goods. The Company updates the measurement of the asset recorded for any
revisions to its expected level of returns, as well as any additional decreases in the value of
the returned products.

ii. Refund liabilities

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or
receivable) from the customer and is measured at the amount the Company ultimately
expects it will have to return to the customer. The Company updates its estimates of refund
liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each reporting
period. Refer to above accounting policy on variable consideration.

Sale of goods —- customer loyalty programme (deferred revenue)

The Company operates a loyalty point programme which allows customers to accumulate
points when they purchase the products. The points can be redeemed for free products,
subject to a minimum number of points being obtained. Consideration received is allocated
between the product sold and the points issued, with the consideration allocated to the points
equal to their fair value. Fair value of the points is determined by applying a statistical
analysis. The fair value of the points issued is deferred and recognised as revenue when the
points are redeemed.

Rendering of services

Revenue from store displays and sponsorships are recognised based on the period for which
the products or the sponsors’ advertisements are promoted/ displayed. Facility management
fees are recognised pro-rata over the period of the contract.

Revenue from other services are recognised based on the services rendered in accordance
with the terms of contacts on the basis of work performed.



f) Gift Vouchers

The amount collected on sale of a gift voucher is recognized as a liability and transferred to
revenue (sales) when redeemed or to revenue (sale of services) on expiry

g) Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest-bearing financial assets
classified as fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using
the effective interest rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included
in other income in the statement of profit or loss.

h) Profit or loss on sale of Investments

Profit or Loss on sale of investments is recorded on transfer of title from the Company, and
is determined as the difference between the sale price and carrying value of investment and
other incidental expenses.

i) Insurance claims

Claims receivable on account of Insurance are accounted for to the extent the Company is
reasonably certain of their ultimate collection.

j) Export Incentive

Export incentives under various schemes notified by government are accounted for in the
year of exports based on eligibility and when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same.

3.13.Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a) Financial assets
(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are

recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or
sell the asset.



(ii)Subsequent measurement of financial assets
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four
categories:
« Financial assets at amortised cost
« Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
« Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
e Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI)

« Financial assets at amortised cost:
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables.

« Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well
as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the
other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest
income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L.
On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI
is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI
financial asset is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

« Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset, which does not

meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified
as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise
meets amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income criteria, as
at fair value through profit or loss. However, such election is allowed only if doing



so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to
as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument
as at FVTPL.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value with all changes recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

Equity instruments:

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes
such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on
initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair
value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI.
There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment.
However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value
with all changes recognized in the P&L

(iii) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when:

the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or

The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a)
the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or

(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control
of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent
of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset
is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.



(iv) Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial
recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets
which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are
debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business
model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be
infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s
operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business
model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the
immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The
Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including
impairment gains or losses) or interest.

(v)Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model
for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets
and credit risk exposure:

e Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost
e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

e Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial
asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and
Ind AS 18

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance
on:
e Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the
scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, if they do not contain a significant financing
component

e« Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the
scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18 that contain a significant financing
component, if the Company applies practical expedient to ignore separation of
time value of money, and

« Right Of Use Assets resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes
in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit
risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month
ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the



instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the
lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the
cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

e All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial
instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial
instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the Company is required to use
the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized
as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected
in a separate line under the head “Other expenses” in the P&L. The balance sheet
presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

e Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contract assets and ROU
Assets: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the
net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does
not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines
financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the
objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in
credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI)
financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/
origination.

b) Financial Liabilities

(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus, in the case of
financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities.



The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and
borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative
financial instruments.

(ii)Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described
below:

+ Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. Gains or
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or
loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS
109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses
attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses
are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated
any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

* Loans and Borrowings
This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.

(iii) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from its balance
sheet when, and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.



c) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts
to hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried
as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair
value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly
to profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised
in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or
treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability.
For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:
» Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a
recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment
» Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is
either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability
or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an
unrecognised firm commitment

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents
the hedge relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the
risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation
includes the Company'’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge,
the hedging/ economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the
risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes
in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged
item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected
to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are
assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective
throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described
below:

(i) Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss as finance costs. The change in the fair value of the hedged item
attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the carrying value of the hedged
item and is also recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance costs.

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to
carrying value is amortised through profit or loss over the remaining term of the hedge
using the EIR method. EIR amortisation may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and
no later than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair value
attributable to the risk being hedged.



If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately
in profit or loss. When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item,
the subsequent cumulative change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable
to the hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss
recognised in profit and loss.

(ii)Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI
in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in
the statement of profit and loss.

The Company uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign
currency risk in forecast transactions and firm commitments, as well as forward
commodity contracts for its exposure to volatility in the commodity prices. The ineffective
portion relating to foreign currency contracts is recognised in finance costs and the
ineffective portion relating to commodity contracts is recognised in other income or
expenses.

Amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction
affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is
recognised or when a forecast sale occurs. When the hedged item is the cost of a non-
financial asset or non-financial liability, the amounts recognised as OCI are transferred
to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement
or rollover (as part of the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked,
or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI remains separately in equity until the forecast
transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm commitment is met.

d) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

3.14.Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-

term deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are

considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.15.Taxes

Tax expense comprises of current income tax and deferred tax.



Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is
recognised outside Statement of profit and loss. Current income tax are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

* When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

* In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and interests in joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible

temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

* When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss;

* In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.



Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is recognised
outside Statement of profit and loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

The Company recognizes tax credits in the nature of MAT credit as an asset only to the extent
that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period, i.e., the period for which tax credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the
year in which the Company recognizes tax credits as an asset, the said asset is created by
way of tax credit to the Statement of profit and loss. The Company reviews such tax credit
asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not
have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period. Deferred tax
includes MAT tax credit.

3.16.Employee Benefits

a) Short Term Employee Benefits
All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified
as short term benefits. Such benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, short term
compensated absences, awards, ex-gratia, performance pay etc. and the same are
recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

b) Post-Employment Benefits

(i) Defined contribution plan
The Company’s approved provident fund scheme, superannuation fund scheme,
employees’ state insurance fund scheme and Employees’ pension scheme are defined
contribution plans. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution
paid/payable under such schemes. The contribution paid/payable under the schemes
is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

(ii)Defined benefit plan
The employee’s gratuity fund scheme and post-retirement medical benefit schemes
are Company’s defined benefit plans. The present value of the obligation under such
defined benefit plans is determined based on the actuarial valuation using the
Projected Unit Credit Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded
plans, the fair value of plan asset is reduced from the gross obligation under the
defined benefit plans, to recognise the obligation on the net basis.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset
ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability
and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a



corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which
they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss in
subsequent periods.

c) Other long term employment benefits:
The employee’s long term compensated absences are Company’s defined benefit plans.
The present value of the obligation is determined based on the actuarial valuation using
the Projected Unit Credit Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded
plans, the fair value of plan asset is reduced from the gross obligation, to recognise the
obligation on the net basis.

d) Termination Benefits :
Termination benefits such as compensation under voluntary retirement scheme are
recognised in the year in which termination benefits become payable.

3.17.Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year
plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of
all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity
shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding
equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of
the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive
equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any share splits and
bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of the financial
statements by the Board of Directors.

3.18.Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to
a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When

discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
a finance cost.



A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it
is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A
contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be
recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the Standalone Financial Statements.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements
when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

3.19.Non-current assets held for sale/ distribution to owners and discontinued
operations

The Company classifies non-current assets (or disposal Company) as held for sale if their
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale rather than through continuing
use. Actions required to complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely that significant
changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management
must be committed to the sale expected within one year from the date of classification.

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded met only when the assets is available
for immediate sale in its present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such assets, its sale is highly probable; and it will genuinely be sold, not
abandoned. The Company treats sale of the asset to be highly probable when:

e The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset,

e An active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated (if
applicable),

e The asset is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation
to its current fair value,

e« The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year
from the date of classification , and

e Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant
changes to the plan will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn.

Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the
fair value less costs to sell. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented
separately in the balance sheet.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the assets to fair
value less cost to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in the fair value less
cost to sell of an assets but not in excess of the cumulative impairment loss previously
recognised, A gain or loss previously not recognised by the date of sale of the non-current
assets is recognised on the date of de-recognition.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale/
distribution to owners are not depreciated or amortised.

A discontinued operation qualifies as discontinued operation if it is a component of an entity
that either has been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and:



e Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations,

e Is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations; or

e Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are
presented as a single amount as profit or loss after tax from discontinued operations in
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.20.Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision maker.

3.21.Events after the reporting period

Adjusting events are events that provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the
end of the reporting period. The financial statements are adjusted for such events before
authorisation for issue. Non-adjusting events are events that are indicative of conditions that
arose after the end of the reporting period. Non-adjusting events after the reporting date are
not accounted but disclosed.



4. Critical accounting Judgements and key source of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Standalone financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
and, income and expenses that are not readily apparent from other sources. Such judgements,
estimates and associated assumptions are evaluated based on historical experience and various
other factors, including estimation of the effects of uncertain future events, which are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Management has considered the possible effects,
if any, that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of its
assets. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the critical judgements and estimations that have been made by the
management in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the
most significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements and / or key sources
of estimation uncertainty that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Revenue recognition

The Company assesses its revenue arrangement in order to determine if its business partner
is acting as a principle or as an agent by analysing whether the Company has primary
obligation for pricing latitude and exposure to credit / inventory risk associated with the sale
of goods. The Company has concluded that certain arrangements are on principal to agent
basis where its business partner is acting as an agent. Hence, sale of goods to its business
partner is recognised once they are sold to the end customer.

Revenue recognition - Customer loyalty program reward points

The Company estimates the fair value of points awarded under the Customer loyalty program
by applying statistical techniques. Inputs to the model include making assumptions about
expected redemption rates, the mix of products that will be available for redemption in the
future, expiry of loyalty points and customer preferences. Such estimates are subject to
significant uncertainty. As at March 31, 2021, the estimated liability towards unredeemed
points amounted to approximately Rs. Nil, (March 31, 2020: Rs. Nil).

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits and the present
value of the obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates
and future pension increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.



The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate
discount rate, management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies
consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation and extrapolated as
needed along the yield curve to correspond with the expected term of the defined benefit
obligation. The underlying bonds are further reviewed for quality. Those having excessive
credit spreads are excluded from the analysis of bonds on which the discount rate is based,
on the basis that they do not represent high quality corporate bonds.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend
to change only at intervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases are
based on expected future inflation rates for the country.

Further details about defined benefit obligations are provided in Note 26.
Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 30 for further disclosures.

Allowance for uncollectible trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced
by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Estimated irrecoverable
amounts are based on the ageing of the receivable balance and historical experience.
Additionally, a large number of minor receivables is grouped into homogeneous groups and
assessed for impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables are written off when
management deems them not to be collectible. The carrying amount of allowance for doubtful
debts is Rs. Nil (March 31, 2020: Rs. Nil).

Inventories

An inventory provision is recognised for cases where the realisable value is estimated to be
lower than the inventory carrying value. The inventory provision is estimated taking into
account various factors, including prevailing sales prices of inventory item, the seasonality of
the item’s sales profile and losses associated with obsolete / slow-moving inventory items.

Intangible assets

Refer Note 3.9 for the estimated useful life of Intangible assets. The carrying value of
Intangible assets has been disclosed in Note 6.

Property, plant and equipment

Refer Note 3.6 for the estimated useful life of Property, plant and equipment. The carrying
value of Property, plant and equipment has been disclosed in Note 5.



Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding
sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a
DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not
include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future
investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The
recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the
expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made in
accordance with the applicable Ind AS. A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event,
the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Where the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows.

The Company has significant capital commitments in relation to various capital projects which
are not recognized on the balance sheet. In the normal course of business, contingent
liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Company.

Guarantees are also provided in the normal course of business. There are certain obligations
which management has concluded, based on all available facts and circumstances, are not
probable of payment or are very difficult to quantify reliably, and such obligations are treated
as contingent liabilities and disclosed in the notes but are not reflected as liabilities in the
Standalone Financial Statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final
outcome of the legal proceedings in which the Company involved, it is not expected that such

contingencies will have a material effect on its financial position or profitability (Refer Note
23).

Lease Term

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together
with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be
exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably
certain not to be exercised.



